Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

2020/21 Annual Service Plan Report



For more information on the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries, contact:

Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

PO BOX 9120 STN PROV GOVT VICTORIA, BC V8W 9B4

1-888-221-7141

or visit our website at http://www.gov.bc.ca/agri/

Published by the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Minister's Accountability Statement



The *Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries' 2020/21 Annual Service Plan Report* compares the Ministry's actual results to the expected results identified in the 2020/21 – 2022/23 Service Plan created in February 2020. I am accountable for those results as reported.

ma

Honourable Lana Popham Minister of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries August 3, 2021

Table of Contents

Minister's Accountability Statement	
Letter from the Minister	5
Purpose of the Annual Service Plan Report	6
Purpose of the Ministry	6
Strategic Direction	6
Operating Environment	6
Report on Performance: Goals, Objectives, Measures and Targets	
Financial Report	15
Discussion of Results	15
Financial Summary	17
Appendix A: Agencies, Boards, Commissions and Tribunals	
Agricultural Land Commission	

Letter from the Minister

It is my pleasure to present the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries' 2020/21 Annual Service Plan Report. This past year has been incredibly challenging for everyone, including our farmers, fishers and food producers. The pandemic has highlighted the importance of local food security, supply chains and the need for our province's food system to be more self-sufficient, sustainable, and resilient. I'm so proud of the innovation and adaptability I've seen over the last 12 months, from implementing new ways to ensure customers were safe to pivoting entire business models, often with great success.

We continue to build on our successful upwards growth trend in terms of our agriculture, seafood and food processing sectors with record 2019 revenues of \$15.5 billion. I'm also pleased to note that 1,100 new jobs were created in 2019, giving us a total of over 64,000 people employed in the agriculture, food and fish industry.

Our government is continuing to expand on our three pillars of Grow BC, Feed BC and Buy BC. Through our successful land matching program, we have helped over 100 new farmers bring 5000 acres of farmland into production. Through Feed BC partnerships, we are seeing over 30% of food in hospitals come from local farms and food producers and we are currently working with the post-secondary sector to get more B.C. food onto campuses. We have also added to our BC Food Hub Network with 12 regional hubs now either in operation or development which strengthen food security, create good jobs and help local economies thrive.

The trend of buying B.C. food has grown instinctively in families and communities around our province throughout the pandemic as we've seen an emphasis placed on the importance of food security. Our Buy BC program is helping small, family run businesses, new entrepreneurs and larger B.C. companies grow and succeed. Over 500 businesses are using the Buy BC logo so British Columbians can easily identify what is local.

Our coastal communities continue to be the backbone of our B.C. seafood and aquaculture sector. In 2019, B.C. processed almost 490 tonnes of wild and farmed marine algae and plants, including seaweed, representing over \$3.4 million in wholesale value. We continue our work on revitalizing B.C.'s wild salmon populations, supporting those efforts through the \$143-million British Columbia Salmon Restoration and Innovation Fund. To date, the federal and provincial government fund has supported 42 projects with more on the way.

We have been reminded over the last year, how much stronger we are when we work together. I am truly honoured to be the Minister of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries. Thank you to everyone who plays a part in growing and providing us with the delicious local food we all rely on.

anatona

Honourable Lana Popham Minister of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries August 3, 2021

Purpose of the Annual Service Plan Report

The Annual Service Plan Report is designed to meet the requirements of the <u>Budget</u> <u>Transparency and Accountability Act</u> (BTAA), which sets out the legislative framework for planning, reporting and accountability for Government organizations. Under the BTAA, the Minister is required to report on the actual results of the Ministry's performance related to the forecasted targets documented in the previous year's Service Plan.

Purpose of the Ministry

The Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries (AFF) is responsible for the production, marketing, processing and merchandising of agriculture and seafood products; the institution and carrying out of advisory, research, promotional, sustainability and adaptation, food safety and plant and animal health programs, projects and undertakings relating to agriculture and seafood; developing strategies for recovery of wild salmon and the collection of information and preparation and dissemination of statistics relating to agriculture and seafood.

The Ministry is a key contributor to economic development and diversification across the Province and is a main contributor to rural economic development and province-wide job creation, particularly for small businesses. The agriculture, seafood and food and beverage sector create economic and social benefits for Indigenous groups and other underrepresented groups, has the potential to attract provincial investment, and contributes to workforce development and skills training.

Strategic Direction

The strategic direction set by Government in 2017, and expanded upon in <u>Minister Popham's</u> <u>2017 Mandate Letter</u> shaped the goals, objectives, performance measures and financial plan outlined in the <u>2020/21 Ministry of Agriculture</u>, Food and Fisheries' Service Plan and the actual results reported on in this annual report.

The global COVID-19 pandemic resulted in many shifts in priorities, structures and operations across the public sector. Any changes to AFFs goals, objectives, performance measures or financial plan to align with the strategic direction established by Government in late 2020 are presented in the 2021/22 Service Plan.

Operating Environment

The Ministry has experienced significant events over the 2020/2021 fiscal year. These events presented considerations to be managed regarding staff resources as well as the Ministry budget. The Ministry prioritized accordingly and responded with meaningful action.

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the agriculture sector and the ministry in a number of ways. This includes impacting the ability of the agriculture sector to meet their labour needs, loss of access to markets (such as exports and restaurants), shifts in consumer demands in terms of what they purchase and how, challenges with accessing personal protective equipment and

cleaning products required to sustain their operations, and conforming with and implementing new safety measures.

In response to COVID-19, the ministry shifted its focus to better support the sector as it faced these challenges. The ministry was also impacted at a staff level as workers adjusted to new ways of working due to physical distancing requirements or have been unable to work at their full capacity as they address personal impacts related to COVID-19.

British Columbia's economy declined in 2020, as the negative impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic pushed economies all over the world into deep recessions. B.C.'s real GDP contraction of 3.8 per cent was the fourth smallest among provinces (behind Prince Edward Island, Nova Scotia, and New Brunswick). The decline in B.C.'s real GDP was almost entirely driven by service-producing industries, while goods-producing industries had modest declines. Output in the arts, entertainment and recreation, accommodation and food services and transportation were some of the main drivers of the decrease in the service sector. In B.C.'s goods producing sector declines in manufacturing and natural resources were partially offset by increases in the construction sector. Employment in B.C. decreased by 6.6 per cent in 2020. However, wages and salaries remained relatively stable compared to 2019 as low-wage workers accounted for the majority of job losses. Retail trade increased by 1.3 per cent in 2020, while consumer prices increased by 0.8 per cent. Residential construction activity slowed but remained relatively strong, with housing starts declining in 2020 after experiencing all-time highs in 2019. In contrast, after declining for three consecutive years home sales reached record levels in late 2020. On the external front, global international trade experienced significant disruptions as the pandemic unfolded. B.C.'s international merchandise exports contracted in 2020 reflecting a combination of weaker global demand and lower commodity prices.

Report on Performance: Goals, Objectives, Measures and Targets

Goal 1: Grow BC: Build sustainable production and help B.C. producers expand local food production.

In 2020/21, the Ministry delivered a wide variety of programs and services to support farmers and processors to increase their production while enhancing the sustainability of their operations.

Objective 1.1: Enhance services and supports to the agriculture, seafood and food and beverage sector

Key Highlights

- In 2021, the B.C. Land Matching Program reached the milestone of matching 2.023 hectares (5,000 acres) of farmland to more than 100 new farmers.
- As a part of the Stronger BC Economic Recovery Plan, the Small Farm Business Acceleration Pilot Program supported 64 small and new famers with farm infrastructure and equipment to grow their farm businesses.
- In 2020/21, the Environmental Farm Plan program increased the total number of farm operations with current Environmental Farm Plans by almost 500, covering 113,000 hectares (280,000 acres) of farmland that have been assessed for environmental risks.

Performance Measure(s)	2019/20	2020/21	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
	Actuals	Target	Actuals	Target	Target
1.1a Cumulative number of Environmental Farm Plans	5,766	5,600	6,255	5,800	6,000

Data source: Agricultural Research and Development Corporation.

Performance Measure(s)	2019/20	2020/21	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
	Actuals	Target	Actuals	Target	Target
1.1b Number of attendees at succession planning events	230	250	330	250	250

Data source: Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Discussion of Results

The number of Environmental Farm Plans (EFPs) completed from 2019/20 to 2020/21 increased from 5,766 to 6,255. This increase was more than twice than forecasted. The increase was larger than expected as a direct result of the injection of \$1.6 million top-up funding into the Program from the StrongerBC Economic Recovery Funding. Because farmers need to have completed EFP to access the cost-sharing funding of the Beneficial Management Practices (BMP) program, and the BMP funding in 2020/21 doubled after the StrongerBC top up, the number of EFPs completed or renewed in 2020/21 was also more than twice the target number of 200. This additional funding supported cost-shared infrastructure improvements for farmers and provided incentive for producers to participate in the EFP Program.

Objective 1.2: Protect the land base, animal, plant and human health through the agriculture and seafood sector

Preservation of agricultural land is a provincial priority overseen by the Agricultural Land Commission. The Ministry of Agriculture is mandated with revitalizing the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC). In 2018, the Minister established an independent Advisory Committee to engage with stakeholders and the general public to provide Government with advice and guidance to support regulatory and administrative improvements. The first legislative changes were announced in 2018 and the Minister continues to benefit from the Advisory Committee's work.

The Ministry, in partnership with federal, provincial and local government agencies, delivers services and initiatives to manage food safety, and risks to plant and animal health. These services protect public health, contribute to maintaining public trust and support consumer confidence domestically and internationally in BC agriculture and seafood products.

Key Highlights

• Revitalization of the ALR and ALC continues, with significant progress being made. New rules will allow property owners in the ALR increased housing flexibility, helping farmers and non-farmers support their families and businesses in their communities. In addition, a new meat licensing system will support the different sizes of meat processing and livestock businesses in the province. Included is a Farmgate Licence that will help new and small-scale producers sell their products locally and fill the demand for local meat products in rural communities.

Performance Measure(s)	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
	Baseline	Actuals	Target	Actuals	Target	Target
1.2 Cumulative hectares (ha) of Agricultural Land Use Inventory (ALUI)	3.7M	3.8M	4.2M	3.8M	4.6M	4.75M

Data source: Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries – ALUI

Discussion of Results

The Ministry supports the ALR and preservation of farmland by promoting a positive urban/agriculture environment, along with working to keep ALR land in production and supporting farmers looking to expand or improve their operations. ALUIs collect comprehensive data about land use and land cover. These inventories generate information that facilitates support for the sector, informs land use planning, and measures change in land use patterns and practices over time. ALUIs also help advise emergency response for environmental disasters and animal health events. The ALUI target for 2020/21 was not met because of the cancellation of the 2020 field surveys due to the COVID pandemic. The limited ability to travel due to COVID precautions directly reduced the amount of in-person visual surveys and land use verification that was able to be completed.

Goal 2: Feed BC: Build the availability, value and variety of B.C. food

Objective 2.1: Increase the use of B.C. grown and processed foods by B.C. government facilities.

The Ministry is working to deliver on Government's commitment to increase the purchase and use of B.C. grown and processed foods in B.C. government facilities such as hospitals, residential care facilities, public post-secondary institutions, and others. The Ministry is actively working with government and industry partners to match the food needs and market opportunities of these facilities with B.C. food supply and production.

Key Highlights

- In 2020/21, Feed BC launched its third formal health authorities (HA) partnership, with Northern Health. All six HAs are tracking purchases of B.C. food, and focused work continues with early partners Interior Health and Fraser Health.
- In March 2021, Feed BC partnerships were launched with nine public post-secondary institution (PSI) partners, all of whom have committed to work towards a minimum 30% B.C. food expenditures over time: British Columbia Institute of Technology, Camosun College, Selkirk College, Simon Fraser University, Thompson Rivers University, University of British Columbia, University of the Fraser Valley, University of Northern British Columbia, and Vancouver Community College.

Performance Measure(s)	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
	Baseline	Actuals	Target	Actuals	Target	Target
2.1 Number of BC government facilities that have increased their purchase of B.C. produced and/or processed foods.	55	103	165	143	195	215

Data source: Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Discussion of Results

In 2020/21, a total of 143 health authority facilities across B.C. had increased their purchases of B.C. foods. The 2020/21 actuals to date (143) are lower than the target (165) due to supply chain impacts. There is strong support for Feed BC in B.C. public post-secondary institutions, regional corrections facilities, and K-12 public schools. Work is underway to build and implement new partnerships in these and other sectors. The impact of these new partnerships, and the associated increases in B.C. food purchases, will be reflected in future Service Plan Reports. Due to the timing of reporting cycles, impacts that may be attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic are expected to be reflected in the 2021/22 Service Plan report.

Objective 2.2: Foster innovation in the agriculture, seafood and food and beverage sector

The Ministry encourages growth in the agriculture, seafood and food and beverage sector

through programs that foster innovation, including the development of new products, processes or technologies. Innovation projects are designed to: enhance the ability of the sector to research, develop, pilot, commercialize and adopt technologies to enhance competitiveness, sustainability and profitability; accelerate business development; and provide access to participate in knowledge-transfer activities. The Ministry is leading developing of the BC Food Hub Network, in collaboration with industry, communities and post-secondary institutions, which aims to offer farmers and processors access to shared food innovation and processing facilities, including equipment and business support services.

Key Highlights

- Food hub feasibility study and business planning projects supported additional B.C. communities to assess the potential to establish food hubs in their region.
- Through the StrongerBC Economic Recovery Plan, seven new regional food hubs were funded at a cost of \$5.6M, bringing the total number of food hubs within the BC Food Hub Network to twelve.
- The Seed Hub Feasibility Study assessed the potential to incorporate in-hub seed processing infrastructure or mobile seed cleaning units at the regional food hubs.
- Each regional food hub advanced important partnership projects, such as the Kweseltken Kitchen, a mobile food processing and training unit supporting Indigenous food security and economic development in collaboration with the Kamloops Food Hub.

Performance	2017/18	2019/20	2020/21	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
Measure(s)	Baseline	Actuals	Target	Actuals	Target	Target
2.2 Cumulative number of regional Food Hubs established	0	1	4	12	6	6

Data source: Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Discussion of Results

During 2020/21, the StrongerBC Economic Plan enabled previous targets for the number of Ministry-funded food hubs to be exceeded, with the BC Food Hub Network growing to include 12 regional food hubs. This created new opportunities for producers and food processors across additional regions, while connecting more British Columbians to local food. Ministry-funded food hubs are now located in Vancouver, Surrey, Port Alberni, Quesnel, Salmon Arm, Victoria, Bowser, Cowichan Valley, Abbotsford, Kamloops, Creston and the Kootenay-Boundary region. Each food hub is unique, based on its regional context, and is being developed in collaboration with several community partners. Through the UBC Endowed Food and Beverage Innovation Professorship, the Ministry is also supporting B.C.'s food and beverage processors with improved access to innovation technology and expertise.

Goal 3: Buy BC: Build consumer awareness and demand and help local producers market their products to grow their businesses

Objective 3.1: Build and leverage a strong, recognizable Buy BC brand to help producers and processors expand sales and ensure consumers can easily identify local food and beverages

The Ministry is committed to delivering an enhanced Buy BC marketing program to build consumer awareness and demand and help local producers market their products. A key component of the program is a strong Buy BC brand identifier that helps consumers recognize and seek out B.C. products. Making the choice to buy B.C. food and beverages directly supports local farmers, producers and processors, strengthens communities and ensures that future generations of British Columbians can depend on a safe, secure supply of local food.

Key Highlights

- Supported \$2.0M in Buy BC cost-shared partnership activities to enhance the ability of B.C.'s agriculture, food and fisheries sector to promote local food and beverages to consumers across the province.
- To mitigate the impacts of COVID-19, supported over 100 B.C. farmers and food and beverage processors to move their products online and expand direct-to-consumer sales.
- Produced a Buy BC video featuring three B.C. seafood processors which have demonstrated innovation and resiliency during the COVID pandemic.
- To mitigate the impacts of COVID-19, partnered with the BC Association of Farmers' Markets (BCAFM) to help nearly 70 farmers' markets transition to an online B.C. farmers' market platform in addition to their physical markets, generating over \$2.5 million sales in 2020.

Performance	2017/18	2019/20	2020/21	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
Measure(s)	Baseline	Actuals	Target	Actuals	Target	Target
3.1 Annual value of domestic purchases of agriculture and seafood products (\$ billions)	6.4	6.9	7.1	TBC	7.4	7.7

Data source: Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Discussion of Results

This performance measure demonstrates the impact of the Ministry's Buy BC marketing campaign on consumer purchasing habits within British Columbia. The Buy BC campaign leverages a strong, recognizable Buy BC brand and logo to ensure consumers can easily identify and purchase local agriculture and seafood products and leverages a comprehensive Buy BC advertising and social media campaign to build brand recognition and encourage consumers to purchase domestic products. As British Columbians increase their demand for local products, B.C.'s farmers and processors will be able to produce and sell more, which will in turn, help provide a safe and secure food supply for all British Columbians. Actuals for 2019/2020 and 2020/21 will not be available until fall 2021.

Objective 3.2: Help producers and processors expand sales in priority export markets

The Ministry supports the expansion of export sales through the delivery of a suite of market development programs and services aimed at ensuring the agriculture and seafood sector has the knowledge, skills and resources to effectively capitalize on emerging market opportunities. By expanding international markets, the Ministry contributes to sustainable, long-term growth for B.C.'s agriculture and seafood sector and economic growth and job creation across the province.

Key Highlights

- Helped the agriculture, food and fisheries sector pivot to new markets and market channels as a result of COVID-19 impacts, and achieve a record \$4.8B in exports in 2020, through the delivery of matchmaking activities and virtual tradeshows targeting buyers in China, Japan, South Korea, Vietnam and the United States.
- Expanded the online version of the 2020 B.C. Agrifood and Seafood Export-Ready Business Catalogue to support the ability of B.C. Trade and Investment Representatives and Canadian Trade Commissioners to help connect international food buyers with B.C. exporters during COVID-19.
- Provided \$0.76M in cost-shared funding to farmers, food and beverage processors and industry associations to support their ability to conduct market research, establish marketing/export plans and access and expand international markets.
- Formed the COVID-19 Emergency Working Group for Fisheries, Aquaculture and Seafood (CEWG) to provide a forum for discussion and resolution of issues that the fisheries, aquaculture and seafood industries are facing as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Performance	2017/18 ¹	2019/20	2020/21	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
Measure(s)	Baseline	Actuals	Target	Actuals	Target	Target
3.2 Annual value of international agriculture and seafood exports (\$ billions)	\$3.9	\$4.4	5.0	4.8	5.2	5.5

Data source: Statistics Canada

¹ Performance measures in this report have been corrected from a fiscal year to calendar year basis, as export data is published on a calendar year basis (e.g. 2017 export date is listed under 2017/18 fiscal year). Measures for 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 have been updated to reflect the adjustments made by Statistics Canada to final export values after initial values were published.

Discussion of Results

This performance measure demonstrates the impact of the Ministry's international market development strategy – including the delivery of an export market development funding program, government-led BC pavilions at international tradeshows and events, and promotional tools and resources – and the ability of producers and processors to export to priority markets, by measuring the overall value of BC's agriculture and seafood exports. In 2020/21, B.C.'s agriculture, food and fisheries did not achieve the target of \$5.0 billion due to impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic on travel, in-person events and the food service market, but still reached a record \$4.8 billion in sales.

Financial Report

Discussion of Results

In response to the 2020/21 COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry delivered a range of programs to support Agriculture and our supply chain. The Ministry provided \$0.5M financial support to the province's farmers, food and beverage processors, and farmer's markets to enable them access and develop websites for online sales. The program also helped to cover the costs of marketing, and shipping products to consumers throughout the province.

Other programs totalling \$22.84M were funded by accessing the Pandemic Response and Economic Recovery contingencies vote.

- The BC Food Hub program was expanded with \$5.6M to create seven additional regional hubs to enable food and beverage businesses access shared-use processing facilities, equipment, technology, technical services, and business supports. This would support ongoing innovation in food processing, regional economic recovery, diversification, and overall food security.
- Also, \$1.6M was invested in the On-Farm Innovation Top-up program to enhance environmental stewardship, build adaptive capacity, and encourage the adoption of beneficial management practices on farms across B.C. that help mitigate impacts related to climate change.
- BC Food Production and Processing program received a \$1.95M boost towards increasing the production and localization of food in BC. A producer owned meat processing plant was established to integrate supply, processing, marketing, and to improve herd management.
- Domestic migrant agriculture workers' accommodation at workcamps was supported with \$0.4M through amenities and infrastructure to ensure compliance with Provincial Health guidelines and reduce the risks of COVID transmission.
- The Temporary Foreign Worker Quarantine Response program accessed \$8.2M to provide a centralized approach for accommodation, support services, and inspections of on-farm accommodation to ensure compliance with the 14-day self-isolation period for Temporary Foreign Workers entering Canada.
- The Emergency Animal Care program provided \$4.2M to support the continued care of animals in major facilities, refuge and rehabilitations centres impacted by COVID-19 restrictions to mitigate risks of animal welfare issues.
- The New Entrant Land Matching Program received \$0.8M to enable the strategic use of existing resources by new and small farms and increase access to capital; and \$0.09M was invested in the Provincial Replant Program that supports the development of a new raspberry replant program for BC berry producers.

The Ministry contributed \$24M to the BC Salmon Restoration and Innovation Fund (BCSRIF) in support of the cost-shared five-year agreement with the Federal Government. The 2020 BCSRIF fund priorities included: scientific research collaborations and the incorporation of Indigenous Knowledge, habitat restoration projects, development of innovative fish and seafood technologies, advance selective fishing practices, and infrastructure upgrades or improvements to existing hatcheries. This work includes restoring lost protections for fish and fish habitat, address and reverse the decline of salmon stocks, and implement a science-based plan to fight climate change.

The Ministry contributed \$5M to match the Town of Oliver's commitment to complete the rerouting of the new irrigation system in an area which is home to over 30 wineries to support sustainable agricultural production in the Oliver area.

The Canadian Agricultural Partnership agreement was delivered for the third year with the Government of Canada. The Ministry also continued to promote the Grow BC, Buy BC and Feed BC programs towards strengthening B.C.'s agrifood and seafood sector, while expanding the domestic market for B.C. food and beverage products.

The BCSRIF transfer and Town of Oliver irrigation grant were funded by accessing the Contingencies and New Programs vote.

	Estimated	Other Authorizations ¹	Total Estimated	Actual	Variance				
Operating Expenses (\$000)									
Agriculture, Science and Policy	16,634	32,230	48,864	47,876	(989)				
Business Development	52,593	21,788	74,381	74,740	359				
BC Farm Industry Review Board	1,364		1,364	1,418	54				
Executive and Support Services	6,670	258	6,928	7,504	576				
Agricultural Land Commission	4,943		4,943	4,911	(32)				
Production Insurance Special Account (Net)	13,200		13,200	13,200	0				
Sub-total	95,404	54,276	149,680	149,648	(32)				
Adjustment of Prior Year Accrual	0		0	(8)	(8)				
Total	95,404	54,276	149,680	149,640	(40)				
Major Capital Expenditures (Consolidated Revenue Fund) (\$000)									
Executive and Support Services	691		691	673	18				
Total	691	0	691	673	18				

Financial Summary

¹ "Other Authorizations" includes TB approved access to Contingencies (All Ministries) and New Programs of \$31.45 million, and access to \$22.83 million from Contingencies (All Ministries): Pandemic Response and Economic Recovery vote.

² The Adjustment of Prior Year Accrual of \$0.008 million is a reversal of accruals in the previous year.

Appendix A: Agencies, Boards, Commissions and Tribunals

As of June 2021, the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries is responsible and accountable for the following:

Agricultural Land Commission

The Provincial Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) is the independent administrative tribunal dedicated to preserving agricultural land and encouraging farming in BC. The ALC is responsible for administering the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR), a provincial land use zone where agriculture is the primary land use taking place on the limited agricultural land base.

British Columbia Farm Industry Review Board

The British Columbia Farm Industry Review Board (the Board) is an independent administrative tribunal that operates at arm's-length from government. As the regulatory tribunal responsible for the general supervision of BC regulated marketing boards and commissions, the Board provides oversight, policy direction and decisions to ensure orderly marketing and to protect the public interest. In its adjudicative capacities, the Board provides a less formal system than the court for resolving disputes in a timely and cost-effective way.

The Marketing Boards and Commissions include:

BC Broiler Hatching Egg CommissionBC Chicken Marketing BoardBC Cranberry Marketing CommissionBC Egg Marketing BoardBC Farm Industry Review BoardBC Hog Marketing CommissionBC Milk Marketing BoardBC Turkey Marketing BoardBC Vegetable Marketing Commission